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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Vision Statement

To be a dynamic, profitable and growth oriented Company.

Mission Statement

The mission of the Company is to prudently utilize the human resources and plant and machinery
in order to achieve high levels of sustainable growth by:

e offering high class products and services to all our customers.

e continuously upgrading the latest production facilities to achieve higher levels of
operational efficiency.

e nurturing a work culture that generates creativity, enthusiasm, professionalism and
teamwork.

e  maintaining the highest standards of ethics, safety and environment.

e  contributing towards the economic development of the country.
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 32* Annual General Meeting of Nadeem Textile Mills Limited will be held on Saturday, October 27, 2018 at 5:30 p.m. at
801-804, 8 Floor, Lakson Square Building No.3, Block-A, Sarwar Shaheed Road, Karachi, to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:
I To confirm the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 28" October, 2017.

2 To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the company for the year ended 30™ June, 2018 together with the Directors’
and Auditors® Reports thereon,

3, To approve the cash dividend @32% (Rs.3.20 per share) for the vear ended June 30, 2018 as recommended by the Board of Directors.
&, To appoint Auditors and lix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2019,
5 To wansact any other business with the permission of the Chair,

Special Business:

f, To ratify the transactions carried out by the Company with related parties as disclosed in the Financial Statements for the year ended June 30,
2018 by passing the following resolutions as ordinary resolutions:

“RESOLVED that the related parties transactions carmied out by the Company with Nadeem Power Generation (Pvt.) Ltd. and Nadeem
International (Pvt.) Lid. related parties during the year ended June 30, 2018 be and are hereby approved.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company may carry out transactions including, but not limited to, the sale/purchase of yam, sale/purchase
of cotton/fibre, sale/purchase of electricity, reprocessing of yamns, rent/lease of assets, sale/purchase of machinery and equipment and other
necessary goods, including receipt and payment of dividends, with related parties from time to time for the financial vear 2018-19,

Karachi: By order of the Board
27-09-2018 Company Secretary
NOTES:

l.  The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from October 19, 2008 to October 27, 2018 (both days inclusive). Transfers received
before the closure of shares transfer books (i.e. 18-10-2018) at the office of share Registrar, M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Ltd, Karachi
Chamber, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi by 18-10-2018 will be treated in time for the entitlement to attend the Annual General Meeting and payment
of the dividend.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting is entitled to appoint another member as his'her proxy to attend and vote instead of
him'her. A proxy must be a member of the Company,

3. The instrument appointing a proxy, in order to be valid must be received at the Head Office of the Company at A -801-804, Lakson Square Building
Mo, Sarwar Shaheed Road, Karachi, not less than forty-eight (48} hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

4. Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must bring hisher participant [D number and account/sub
account number along-with original Computerized Mational Identity Card (CNIC) or passport at the time of attending the meeting to prove his'her
identity and in case of Proxy must enclose additionally an attested copy of hisher CNIC or Passport, Representatives of corporate members should
bring the wsual documents required for such purpose.

5. CDC Account Holders will also have to follow the guidelines laid down in Circular No. | dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

6. Members are requested to immediately inform of any change in their addresses to our Share Registrar, M/S Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt) Lid., 4"
Floor, Karachi Chambers, Hasrat Mohani Road, Karachi,

7. In pursuance of the directions given by SECP vide SROTR7(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, those sharcholders who desire the receive Annual
Finaneial statements in future through email instead of receiving the same by Post are advised to give their formal consent along with their valid email
address on a standard request form which is available at the Company's website L.e. www.nadeem.com.pk and send the said form duly filled in and
signed along with copy of histher/its CNIC/Passport or other such information in the case of a body corporate to the Company”s share registrar. This
is optional; m case you do not wish to avail this Facility please ignore this point, Annual Financial statements will be sent to you at your registered
address, as per normal practice,

8. Payment of cash Dividend Electronically
In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode
directly mto the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders,

All sharcholders are requested to provide the details of their bank mandate specifying: (1) title of account, (1) account number, (iii) IBAN number: (iv)
bank name and (v} branch name, code & address, to the Company's Share Registrar M/S Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Ltd., Karachi.
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Submission of copies of CNIC and NTN Certificate (Mandatory)

Pursuant to the directive of the Securities & Exchange Comimission of Pakistan (SECP), Dividend Warrant shall mandatorily bear the Computerized
Mational ldentity Card {CNIC) numbers of shareholders. Sharcholders are therefore requested to fulfill the statutory requirements and submit a copy
of their CNIC (if not already provided) to the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (PvL) Ltd., Karachi, without any delay,

In case of non-availability of a valid copy ol the Shareholders’ CNIC in the records of the Company, the company shall withhold the Dividend in
terms of Clause (a) of proviso under Section 243(2) of the Companies Act 2017, which will be released by the Share Registrar, only upon submission
of a valid copy of the CNIC in compliance with the aforesaid SECP directives.

Withholding Tax on Dividend
Pursuant to the provision of the Finance Act, 2017 effective July 1, 2017 the deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the
companies under section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, are as under:

{a) For filers of income tax retums: 15%

{b) For non-filers of income tax returns: 20%
Shareholders who are filers are advised to make sure that their names are entered into latest Active Tax Payers List (ATL) provided on the website of
FBR at the time of dividend payment, otherwise they shall be treated as non-filers and tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at the rate of 20%:
instead of [5%.

Withholding tax on Dividend in case of Joint Account Holders

In order to enable the Company to follow the directives of the regulators to determine sharcholding ratio of the Joint Account Holder(s) {where
shareholding has not been determined by the Principal sharcholder) for deduction of withholding tax on dividend of the Company, shareholders are
requested to please furnish the sharcholding ratio details of themselves as Principal sharcholder and their Joint Holders, to the Company’s Share
Registrar, enabling the Company to compute withholding tax of each shareholder accordingly. The required information must reach the Company’s
Share Registrar by October 18, 2018, otherwise each shareholder will be assumed to have equal proportion of shares and the tax will be deducted
accordingly.

STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business, given as agenda item no. 6 of the Notice to be transacted at the 32" Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

ITEM NO. 6 OF THE AGENDA:
Madeem Textile Mills Limited is engaged in manufacture and sale of yvarn. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions
with its associated entities. Summary of transactions carried out during the vear with the associated entities is as follow:

i’u_ Name of Associated Undertaking Nature of Transactions Rupees
1 Nadeem Power Generation (Pwvi) Lid. Purchase of Power 260,833,330
2 MNadeem Power Generation (Pvt) Ltd, Loan Received 2,300,000
3 MNadeem Power Generation {Pwt) Lid, Loan Re-Paid Q877687
4 Madeem Power Generation (Pvt) Ltd. Rental Income 10,000
5 MNadeem International (Pyvt) Lid. Loan Received 32,000,000
f MNadeem International (Pvt) Lid. Loan Re-Paid 46,350,000
7 MNadeem International (Pvt) Lid. Weigh Bridge Expenses 1 80,000

Mr. Zahid Mazhar, Mr. Omer Bin Zahid and Mr. Hassan Bin Zahid are Directors of Nadeem Textile Mills Limited and are also Directors of Nadeem
Power Generation (Private) Limited.

Mr. Zahid Mazhar, Mr. Omer Bin Zahid, Mr. Hassan Bin Zahid and Mrs. Naila Zahid are Directors of Nadeem Textile Mills Limited and are also
Directors of Nadeem International (Private) Limited.

All related party transactions, during the vear 2015, were reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee and the Board in their respective meetings.
The transactions with related parties were carried out at arm’s length prices determined in accordance with the comparable uncontrolled prices
method.

The above concerned Directors abstained while the Board approved the above transactions in accordance with the requirement of relevant provision
of the Companies Act, 2017 and listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017,

The above transactions with related parties are an ongoing process and will also remain continued i future.

MNone of the Directors other than the above concerned directors have any direct or indirect interest in the above mentioned associated entities and have
no interest in the above business, other than shareholders of the Company.

=1
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHARE HOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Dear Shareholders,

The Directors of your Company have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and Auditor’s Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2018,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The financial results of the Company for the vear ended June 30, 2018 are summarized below.

Rupees in Million
2018 2017
Sales 6,441.23 5.,230.01
Ciross Profit 563.96 306.93
Profit / { Loss) before tax 168.29 24.49
| Profit / (Loss) after tax 149.76 7.13

The sales turnover has increased in the current year to Rs. 6,441.23 million from Rs, 5,230.01 million
of the previous year which shows an increase of 23.16%. The Company has managed to earn gross
profit of Bs. 563.96 million as compared to 306.93 million of the preceding vear showing an increase
of 83.75%. Net profit after tax also increased to Rs. 149.76 million as compared to profit of Rs. 7.13
million of the previous year. No changes have occurred during the financial year in the nature of the
business of the company.

BREAK-UPVALUE AND EARNING PER SHARE

The break-up value of the shares as on June 30, 2018 was Rs. 37.84 as compared to Rs. 30.85 as at
June 30, 2017.

The earning per share for the year ended June 30, 2018 is Rs. 8.07 as compared to 0.44 for the year ended
June 30, 2017.

DIVIDEND
The Board of Directors of the company is pleased to recommend a cash dividend of 32 % i.e., Rs. 3.2
per share for the yvear ended June 30, 2018,

OVERVIEW

Pakistan’s varn exports have been on the decline for the last couple of years owing to higher costs of
production. APTMA has been continuously apprising the Government regarding the problems of the
Pakistan Textile Industry. Its efforts have started giving results. The government of Pakistan has
started taking positive steps including award of 4% export rebate to improve the growth of textile
industry and exports.

Textile exports witnessed considerable growth during the current fiscal vear. This increase in textile
exports was primarily due to the support extended under the Prime Minister’s export relief package, as
well as the substantial adjustment of the value of Pak Rupee against dollar.

OPERATING PERFORMANCE
The plant remained operative throughout the year and achieved the production of 22.19 million Kgs. of
spun yarn after conversion into 20/s count as compared to 20.45 million Kgs. of previous year.

PRESENT AND FUTURE OUTLOOK

Owver the last five vears, annual cotton production has decreased from 13.86 million bales to 11.98
million bales, witnessing a decrease of 14 percent, which has left Pakistan with the only choice to
import cotton to meet the domestic demand. Apart from technical and administrative challenges and
climate change, poor research and training, shortage of good seeds, shrinkage of area cultivated and
water scarcity has also played a major role in shrinkage of the cotton production,

In order to protect the textile industry, all duties and non-tariff barriers on import of cotton should be
removed till such time when domestic cotton production can mect domestic demand. To improve the
crop vield and quality of cotton, aggressive campaign and awareness program should be launched by
the Government. A reduction in custom duty on import of polyester is also necessary to improve the
viability and awvailability of raw material and to regain market share in the man-made fibre segment.

C (6
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We hope that the new government would try to fulfill its commitments for the resolution of the major
issues being faced by the textile industry of Pakistan such as high cost of doing business, energy
prices, inadequate production of raw cotton, delay in payvment of Sales Tax and Income Tax Refunds,
low productivity of labour. lack of institutional support / infrastructure facilities etc.

The Management is determined to show better financial results in the time to come by increasing its
export sales and fetching better varn rates in the local market as well. The management of the
Company aims to continue working towards efficiently running the mills and earning protits for their
shareholders.

EXPANSION AND MODERNIZATION

The Company is continuing its BME. policy. The management has imported and successfully installed
ZMW CAT Gas Generator to improve the power generation. Used spinning machinery in good
condition has also been procured to improve production and guality.

This BME. program is to be continued in future according to the resources available.

HUMAN RESOURCE

The company has established a Human Resource and Remuneration Commitiee comprises of three
members as mentioned in the company information. On the recommendations of HR&R Committee,
the management is continuously upgrading its manpower through training facilities and by inducting
more qualified staft,

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance. The Board has reviewed the
Code of Corporate Governance and declares that:

= The financial statements, together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act 2017.These Statements present fairly the Company’s state of affairs, results of its operations,
cash flow, comprehensive income and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statementis and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

# The International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan. have been followed in
preparation of financial statements.

e The system of Internal Control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored. The process of review and monitoring continues with the object to improve it further.
There is no significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concermn.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance. as detailed
in the listing regulations.
The key operating and financial data for the last six years in summarized form is annexed.

= [nformation about taxes and levies is given in the notes to the accounts.

e The Company entered in arm length transactions with other members of the group. These
transactions are in compliance with the directives issued by the Security & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan in this regard.

s  All the directors of the company are registered as tax-payer and none of the company’s directors is
in default of payment of any dues to a banking company, DF1, NBFI1 or Stock Exchange.

= None of the directors of the company is serving on the Board of 5 or more listed companies.

# The company operates an unfunded gratuity covering all its employees who have completed their
qualifying period. Provision is made annually to cover current obligation under the scheme. The
company has adopted the revised [AS 19,

e Trading in the shares of Company during the yvear by the Directors. Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children are mentioned in the
annexed pattern of sharcholding.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The company has strong commitment towards corporate social responsibility. The Company believes
in contributing to the society and environment by promoting better working environment and
contributing regularly to the national exchequer as per law.

i. Health, Safety and Environment:

We work continuously to ensure that our employees work in a safe and healthy working
environment. The Company regularly contributes towards the health facility and retirement
benefits available for the workers of the Company

Business Ethics:

The Management is committed to conducting all business activities with integrity. honesty,
and observance of laws and regulations. A Code of Conduct detailing policies with respect
to the same has been developed and approved by the Board.

-
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iii. Energy Savings:
The Management focuses on energy conservation, Many preventive measures have been
adopted by fixing energy conserving devices to save the energy. Workers are also made
aware of various energy conservation methods in order to curtail the unnecessary
consumption of energy.

BOARD MEETINGS
During the period under review, six meetings of the Board of Directors were held and following were in

attendance:
Name of Directors No. of Meetings Attended

1. Mr. Zahid Mazhar G

2. Mr. Omer Bin Zahid [}

3. Mr. Hassan Bin Zahid 6

4. Mrs. Naila Zahid (5

5. Mrs, Anam Omer G

6. Mrs. Shafia Hassan 6

7. Mr. Mehmood Siddiqui 6

8. Mr. Faiz-ul-Hassan Siddigui G

7. Mr. Nadeem Ahmed 6
COMPOSITION OF BOARD
Directors Numbers Composition Numbers
(a) Male (6 a) Independent Director 02
(b Female 03 b} Other Non-Executive Directors 04

c) Executive Directors 03

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Following is the list of associated companies:
(a) Nadeem Power Generation (Pvt.) Lid.
(b)Y MNadeem International (Pvt.) Ltd.

The transactions between the related parties were made at arm’s length basis. The Company has fully
complied with the best practices of transfer pricing as stated in the Listing Regulations. The related
party transactions were approved by the Board on the recommendation of Audit Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The company has established an audit committee as required by the Code of Corporate Governance,
which comprises of three members as mentioned in the company information. The audit committee
has established an internal audit function to monitor and review the adequacy and implementation of
internal control at each level.

AUDITORS

The Auditors of the Company M/S Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafig Chartered Accountants retire at
the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting and being eligible; offer themselves for re-appointment as
Auditors for the next term.

As suggested by the Audit Committee, The Board recommends their appointment as Auditors of the
Company for the vear ending June 30, 2019.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The pattern of sharecholding of the company as at June 30, 201¥ is annexed.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Directors of the Company would like to take the opportunity to thank the shareholders, valued
clients and bankers for the co-operation extended by them during the course of business activities. The
Directors are also pleased to record their appreciation for the continued diligence and devotion of the

staff members and workers of the Company.
,{d‘,?ﬂ

On Behalf of Board of Directors
Karachi: OMER BIN ZAHID
Dated: September 27, 2018 Director
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Key Operating & Financial Data
For the period from July 2013 To June 2018

PERIODS Jul - Jun Jul - Jun Jul - Jun Jul - Jun Jul - Jun Jul - Jun
2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-2016 2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-2013
Net Sales Revenue 6,441,230,473 | 5,230,013,369 | 4,800,851,059 | 5,224 533,979 | 5,620,594,591 | 4,322,718,024
Cost Of Goods Sold 5877270121 | 4,923,087,905 | 4695875674 | 5021581671 | 5282539280 | 4,007 983,172
Gross Profit 563,960,352 306,925,464 104,975,385 202,952,308 338,055,302 314,734 852
Operating Profit 382 570,826 147,077,113 (32,661,510) 61,092,746 183,815,115 235929615
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 168,299,087 24,494 249 | (148,482489)| (66,994,605) 82,515,432 114,479,183
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 149,755,696 7,126,008 | (178,224,297)| (88,010,907) 56,533,190 72,698,839
Paid Up Capital 192,119,850 156,195,000 156,195,000 120,150,000 120,150,000 120,150,000
Current Assets 2,409,635450 | 1,699.417,236 | 1,419,416,621 | 1,281,610,172 | 1,238,828,343 | 1,152,555,818
Current Liabilities 2,529 508,675 | 1,956,025,702 | 1,686,792 467 | 1,477,332,240 | 1,402,102,804 | 1,506,146,440
7,000
TURNOVER S el
Year Sales in (M)
sa00 4

2018 6.441 e

2017 5,230 i

2016 4,801 i el

2015 5,225

2014 5.621 2,000 +

2013 4,323 -

1,000 4
2013 2014 2015 2006 20172018
APPLICATION OF REVENUE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
Cost of Sale
~ 91.24%

RUPEES Yo
Cost of Sale 5,877,270,121 91.24%
Operating Expenses 181,389,526 2.82%
Other Expenses + Financial 214,271,739 3.33%
Taxation 18,543,391 0.29%
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 149 755,696 2.32%
TOTAL 6,441,230.473  100.00%

Tax
2.32%

Profit After

/ Other Expenses

Taxation /
0.29%

+ Financial
3.33%

e perating
— — Expenses
2.82%

[TA1
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2017

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 9 as per the following:
a. Male: 6
b. Female: 3
2. The composition of board is as follows:
Category Names
a) Independent Directors Mr. Faiz-ul-Hassan Siddiqui
Mr. Nadeem Ahmed
b) Executive Directors Mr. Zahid Mazhar

Mr. Omer Bin Zahid
Mr. Hassan Bin Zahid
c) Non-Executive Directors Mrs. Naila Zahid

Mrs. Anam Omer

Mrs. Shafia Hassan

Mr. Mehmood Siddiqui

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five
listed companies, including this company.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and

significant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies
along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of board.

8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9, Three of the directors met the criteria of exemption under the condition of having 14 years of
education and 15 years of experience on the Board of Directors of Listed Company. The
condition of training certification for the other directors is being complied in due course.

[13] -
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10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied
with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11, CFO and CEOQO/Director duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Mr. Faiz-ul-Hassan (Chairman)
Mrs.  Anam Omer (Member)
Mrs.  Shafia Hassan (Memebr)
b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Nadeem Ahmed (Chairman)
Mrs.  Anam Omer (Member)
Mrs.  Shafia Hassan (Member)

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance.

14, The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee (Quarterly)
b) HR and Remuneration Committee (Annually)

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function is considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with
Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses
and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of
ethics as adopted by the ICAP

17 The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

(Y

Karachi: OMER BIN ZAHID

Dated: September 27, 2018 Director
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Plot No. 180, Blcok-A, S.M.CH.5.,

Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafiq kerachi-74400 PAkisTaN
Tel. No. : (021) 4549345-9

Russell
Bedford CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  Fax No. : (021) 4548210

E-mail : info@rsrir.com

Website : www.rsrir.com

Other Offices at Lahore - |slamabad

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Nadeem Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries
of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply
with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies
Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured comphiance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company’s process for
identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s
length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30,
2018.

K arachi: FJL .
: Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafi
Dated: September 27, 2018 Chastered Acooatitarits 4 q
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Plot No. 180, Blcok-A, S.M.CH.5.,

Rahman Sarfaraz Rahim Igbal Rafiq kerachi-74400 PAkisTaN
Tel. No. : (021) 4549345-9

Russell
Bedford CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS  Fax No. : (021) 4548210

E-mail : info@rsrir.com

Website : www.rsrir.com

Other Offices at Lahore - |slamabad

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of Nadeem Textile Mills Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Nadeem Textile Mills Limited (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, and the statement of profit or loss,
the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (“the financial statements’), and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act. 2017 (XIX of 2017). in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2018 and of the

profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan /
Institute of Cost and Management Accountants (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter(s)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the Key audit matter(s):

S. No | Key audit matter(s) How the matter was addressed in our audit
01. | New requirements under the Companies Act,

2017 (Refer note 3.5) We reviewed the requirements of the Fourth

The provisions of the fourth schedule to the schedule to the Act and carried out the following

Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) became audit procedures to ensure that the financial

applicable to the Company for the first time in the state_ments were prepare in accordance with new

preparation of these annexed financial statements EagIHrenenS:

which replaced previously applicable fourth o 1

schedule to the repealed Companies Ordinance | ® As part of transition to new requirements, t_h‘E

1084, management performed a gap analysis to identify
additional requirements of disclosure for the

The Act, has also brought certain changes with current financial reporting ﬁﬂm“-“‘r’ﬂﬂf- W‘f

regards to preparation and presentation of the reviewed the management’s process to |1dcnnf},f

annual financial statements of the Company. the necessary amendments required in the
Company’s financial statements;

I_n view of the extensive impacts in the aqnm_ced e We cvaluated the results of management’s

financial statements due to first time apgllcatm!] analysis and key decisions taken in respect of the

of the f'-:Jurth_ schedule to the Act, we considered it transition,: and

as a key audit matter.

e  We assessed the adequacy and appropriateness of
the additional disclosures made in the annexed
financial statements based on the new
requirements.

02. Review of recoverability of deferred tax asset

( Refer note 18.2)

Under International Accounting Standard 12,
Income Taxes, the Company is required to review
recoverability of the deferred tax assets
recognised in the statement of financial position
at each reporting period.

Recognition of deferred tax asset position
involved managements’ estimate of the future
available taxable profits of the Company and
there is an inherent uncertainty in such estimation
in relation to the future cash flows and timing of
reversals of un-used tax losses to determine
whether or not the availability of future profits
against which tax deductions represented by the
deferred tax assets would be adjusted.

As at June 30, 2018, the Company carries a net
deferred tax asset of Rs 23 million in its
statement of financial position.

We considered this as a key audit matter owing to
its significant value and estimation uncertainty of
the assumptions used by management about
future profitability.

Our procedures in relation to this matter included:

We evaluated the appropriateness of amounts of
un-used tax losses, tax credit on investments and
minimum tax against which deferred tax assets
were recognised;

We assessed the reasonableness of management’s
projections  with  underlying  assumptions
mcluding growth rate, future revenue and costs,
comparing the assumptions to, historical results
and considering other relevant information to
assess whether the deferred tax asset would be
adjusted against future taxable profits as per the
management projections;

We tested mathematical accuracy of projections
along with use of appropriate tax rate on
temporary differences:

We  assessed the  appropriateness  of
management’s accounting for deferred taxes and
the accuracy of related disclosures.

5l
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the date
of this auditor’s report 1s information included in the director’s report, but does not include the
financial statements of the company and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, on other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude ‘that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
Companies Act. 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if’
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |[dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

[T el
. (18]
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we 1dentify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the vear were for the
purpose of the Company’s business;

d) =zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was
deducted by the company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of

that Ordinance; and

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Mr. Muhammad
Raftiq Dosani.

twlﬁhnman Sarfaraz Rahim Iqbal Rafiq
Chartered Accountants

Karacha:
Dated: September 27, 2018

5]
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2018
Note
— June 30,2018 June 30, 2017
RUPEES RUPEES
Non-Current Asscts
Property, plant and equipment i) 1,663.043.411 1.627 350,341
Long term deposits i 13,622,274 13,616,929
Deferred tax 8.2 23,128,977 -
Current Assets
Stores, spares and loose tools & 76,884,797 72,271,072
Stock-in-trade Q 1,231.609.339 825,607,539
Trade debts f0 640,857 885 509 681,878
Loans and advances i 38,304,295 39,153,138
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 12 207,459,849 099,196,556
Tax refunds due from government 13 115,488,303 123,017,213
Cash and bank balances 14 99030982 30,489 840
2.409,635,450 1,699.417.236
4,109,430,112 3,340,384,506
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital And Reserves
Authorized Capital
25,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 250,000,000 250,000,000
[ssued, subscribed and paid up capital 15 192.119.850 156,195,000
Share premium 177,597,289 123,710,000
Share Application Money - 39,812,139
Revaluation surplus on property. plant and equipment 6 324,611,119 337,726,446
Unappropriated profit 357,288,753 202,021,367
1.051.,617.011 909 464,952
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term financing 17 148,283,501 98,012,066
Deferred liabilities I8 63.250.494 79,183,728
Loan from associates f9 316,770,371 297.698.,058
528,304,426 474,893 852
Current Liabilitics
Loan from director 20 10,000,000 4 800,000
Trade and other payables 21 685,957,623 498,697,692
Accrued mark-up iy 39.138.030 24,157,491
Short term borrowings 23 1.615,969.,280 1.209 286,690
Unclaimed dividend 1.478,723 1. 478,601
Current portion of long term financing 17 96,965,019 96,605,219
Current portion of loan from associate o 20,000,000 121,000,000
2.529.508.675 1.956,025,702
Contingencies and commitments 24 - <
4,109.430,112 3,340,384 ,506

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

I (P

DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Karachi: Dated: September 27, 2018
As required U/S 232(1) of the companies Act. 2017, these financial statements have been signed by two directors and CFO,
as the chief executive is out of country.

DIRECTOR

BT
. [20]
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Note
Sales - net 25
Cost of sales 26
Gross profit
Administrative expenses 27
Distribution costs 28
Other operating income 29
Other operating expenses 30
Finance cost 31
Profit before taxation
Taxation 32
Profit after taxation
Earnings per share - basic and diluted 33

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018

Nadeem

June 30, 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
6,441,230.473 5,230.013.369
(5,877.270,121) (4,923.087.905)
563.960,352 306.925. 464
(94,325.935) (88.518.365)
(87.,063,591) (71.329,986)
(181.389.526) (159,848,351)
382,570,826 147.077.113
3,369,609 2,131,384
(40,438,037) (5.102,758)
(177,203.311) (119.,611,490)
(214,271,739) (122.582,864)
168,299,087 24,494,249
(18,543,391) (17.368.241)
149,755,696 7,126,008
Restated

8.07 0.44

The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

P

A

DIRECTOR
Karachi: Dated: September 27,

DIRECTOR
2018

(U

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

As required U/S 232(1) of the companies Act, 2017, these financial statements have been signed by two directors and CFO,
as the chief executive is out of country.

[F711
21]
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
Profit after taxation 149,755,696 7,126,008
Other comprehensive income / (loss)
[tems that will not be subsequently reclassified in profit or loss:
Actuarial gain / (loss) on defined benefit obligation - net of tax (879,442) (1,392,086)
Total comprehensive income for the year 148,876,254 5,733,922

The annexed notes from | to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Karachi: Dated: September 27, 2018
As required U/S 232(1) of the companies Act, 2017, these financial statements have been signed by two directors and CFO,

as the chief executive is out of country.

[F71]
. [22]
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: RUPEES RUPEES
Net cash (used in) / generated from operations 34 53,231,192 185,559,386
Long term deposit (5,345) (500,000
Taxes paid (55,947,348) (49,588,372)
Gratuity paid 18.1.1 (24,781,713) (19,076,074)
Finance cost paid (162,222,772) (117.,081,691)
Workers profit participation fund paid (1.287.686) -
Dividend paid (6,724,195) -
Net cash used in from operating activities (197,737.867) (686,751)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property. plant and equipment (183,712,478) (194.349.825)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6.1.3 9,405,298 8.083.100
Proceeds from disposal Investment 5 1.342.775
Net cash used in investing activities (174,307,180) (184.923,950)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term finance obtained / (repaid) - net 50,631,295 (48,472,938)
Loan from director 5,200,000 -
Loan from associate-net (21,927.687) 48,191,774
Right Shares Application Money - 89,812,139
Net cash generated from financing activities 33,903,608 89,530,975
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (338,141.439) (96.079,726)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (1,178,796,859) (1,0682,717,133)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 35 (1,516,938,298) (1,178.796.859)

The annexed notes from | to 44 form an integral part of these financial

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Karachi: Dated: September 27, 2018
As required U/S 232(1) of the companies Act, 2017, these financial statements have been signed by two directors and CFO,
as the chief executive is out of country.

23] -
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=
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
e, Share Unappropriated RSE‘;HII':]:':;“
subseribed and pprop P Total
bt cautial premium profit property, plant
paid ip cap and equipment
Rupees
Balance as at July 01, 2016 156,195,000 123,710,000 182,831,184 351,182,707 313,918,891
Profit for the vear - 7126008 - 7126008
Other comprehensive income 2 H (1.392,086) - {1.392,086)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 5,733,922 - 5,733,922
Transfer to unappropriated profit on account of
incremental depreciation- net off deferred tax - 13,456,201 (13,456,261}
Balance as at June 30, 2017 156,195,000 123,710,000 202,021,367 337,720,446 B19.652,813
Profit for the year - - 149,755,006 - 149,755,606
Other comprehensive income - 4 (879.442) - (879.442)
Total comprehensive income for the vear - 148,876,254 - 148,876,254
Transfer to unappropriated profit on account of
incremental depreciation - 13,115.327 (13,115,327) -
Tf'ﬂﬂ.‘fﬂ{.'!fﬁﬂ.‘f !|1."I-.I'I! (WHErS
Issue of Ordinary shares 35,924,850 53,887,289 - - R0.812,139
Dividends paid - - (6,724,195) - (6,724,195)
315,924 850 53 887289 (6,724,195) - 83,087,944
Balance as at June 30, 2018 192.119.850 177,597,289 357,288,753 324.611,119 1.051.617.011
The annexed notes from 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.
(TP (R
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Karachi: Dated: September 27, 2018

As required LU/S 232(1) of the companies Act, 2017, these financial statements have been signed by two directors and CFO,

as the chief executive is out of country.
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

THE COMPANY ANDITS OPERATIONS
Nadeem Textile Mills Limited { "the Company") was incorparated in Pakistan as public limited company on July 15, 1984 and its shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. The main business of the Company is manufacture and sale of vim,

The geographical location and address of the Company s business units, imcluding mills/plant is as under;
The registered office of the Company is situated at 801-804, Lakson square Building No. 3, Sarwar Shaheed Road, Karachi

The Company's mills is located at;
-Unit-1: A-265, 5. LTE., Mooriabad, disirict Dadu, Sindh.
-Unit-2: E-1. 8. LTE., Kotri, Sindh.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONSAND EVENTSAFFECTING THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL

POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

All significant transactions and events that have affected the Company's statement of financial position and performance during the vear have been adequately disclosed in
the notes to these financial statements, Fora detailed discussion about these significant transactions and events please nefer to the Directors’ report.

BASISOF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the sccounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The acoounting and reporting standards
applicable in Pakistan comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) isseed by the Intermational Accounting Standards Board (1A5B) as
are notified under the Companies Acl, 2017 (the Act), and provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2007, Where provisions of and directives issued
under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standaeds, the provisions ol and directives issued under the Companies Act, 201 7 have been followed.

Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except,

- Land and buildings measured at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation therein;
- recognition of staffretirement benefits at fair value,

Functional and presentation corrency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the functional and presentabion currency of the Company.

Use ofestimates and judgments

The preparation of financial staterments in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of certan critical accounting estimates. [t also requires the
management to exercise its judgment in the process of applyving the Company’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates
are invalved or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows;

MNoie
1) Revaluation of certain items of property, plant and equipment 4.1
it} Useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipmcnt 4.1
iitd  Provision for slow moving and obsolete store, spares and loose tools 4.2
v} Prowvision for stow moving and ohsolete stock in trade 4.3
v} Estimation for impairment of trade debts 4.4
vil  Provision for stalT retivement benelits 4.6
vir)  Provision for taxation 4.9

Amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations which are effective during the vear ended June 30, 2018

The third and fourth schedule 1o the Companies Act, 2007 became applicable to the Company for the first time for the preparation of these financial statements, The
Companies Act, 2017 (incleding its third and fourth schedule) forms an integral part of the stanutory financial repotting framework applicable to the Company and amongst
others, prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in relation o various elements of the financial statements. Additional disclosures include but arc not limited to,
particulars ofimmovable assets of the Company, management assessment of sufficiency of tax provision in the fnancial statements , change in threshold for identification of
executives, additional disclosure requirements for related parties ete,

Amendments/ interpretations to existing standards and forthcoming reguirements
The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto
will be effective for sccounting periods beginning on or afier the dates specified below:

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions - amendments 1o IFRS 2 elarify the accounting for certain types of arrangements and are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after | Tanuary 2018, The amendments cover three accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments: (b) classification
of share-based payvments settled net of tax withholdings: and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based payment from cash-setted to equity-settled. The new
requirements could affect the classification and/or measurement of these arrangements and potentially the tming and amount of expense recognized for new and
outstanding awards, The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company s finencial statements,

Transfers of Investment Property { Amendments to LAS 40 ° Investment Property” -effective for annual penods begimning on or atter | January 200 8) clanfics that an entity
shall transfera property to, or from, investment property when, and only when there is a change inuse, A change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the
definitton of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. In isolation, a change in management's intentions for the use of & property does not provide
evidencs ofa change inuse. Theamendments are not hikely to have an impact on the Company s financial stutements,

Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2004-2016 Cycle [Amendments o LAS 28 *Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures'] (elfective for annual periods beginmng on or
after 1 January 2008) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value
thraugh profit or loss, for each associate or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. Furthermore, similar election is available to non-
investment entity that has an inferest in an associgie or joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value measurement
applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for
cach investment entity associate or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have animpact on the Company s financial statements.
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IFRIC 22 *Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 201 8) clanfies which date should he
used for translation when a foreign currency transection involves payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to, The related item is translated using the exchange rate
on the date the advance foreign currencey is received or paid and the prepayment or deferred meome is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on inital recognition of the related asset, expense or income {or part of it) would remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance
consideration was recognized. Ifthere are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each payment or receipt ofadvance
consideration. The application ol interpretation 15 not likely to have animpact on the Company’s financial statements.

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there
% uncertainy over income WX reatments under TA%S 12, The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of cursent and
deferred tax. Theapplication of interpretation is not likely to have an impact on the Company s financial statements.

IFRS 15 "Revenoe from Contracts with Customers” (effective for annual periods beginning on orafter 1 July 2008). IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue 15 recognized, 1t replaces existing revenue recognition guidance, including [1AS 18 *Revenue’, 1AS |1 *Construction
Contracts” and IFRIC |3 *Customer Loyvalty Programmes’, The Company is currently in the process of analyzing the potential impact of changes required in its revenue
recogmition policies on adoption of the standard.

IFRS % Financial Instruments” and amendment — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2008 and |
Jonuary 2009 respectively). IFES 9 replaces the existing guidance in TAS 3% Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised puidance on the
classification and measurement of fnancial instruments, a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and new general hedge accounting
requirements. [t alse carries forward the guidance on recognition and derecognition of financial instruments from [AS 39, The Company is currently in the process of
analyzing the potential impact of changes required in classitication and measurement of financial instruments and the impact of expected loss model on adoption of the
standard.

IFRS 16 *Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after | January 2009). [FRS 16 replaces existing leasing guidance, including 1AS 17 *Leases”, IFRIC 4
‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains & Lease”, SHC 15 *Operating Leases- Incentives’ and S1C-27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Formofa Lease',

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a nght-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlving asset
and & lense liahility representing its abligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for shori-term leases and leases of low-value items, Lessor
accounting remaing similar to the current standarcd ie. lessors comtinue e classify leases as finance or operating leases. The Company is currently in the process ofanalyzing
the potential impact of its lease arrangements that will result inrecognition of right o wse assets and habilities on adoption of the standard.

Amendment to TAS 28 *Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures" - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures {effective for annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2019}, The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities with preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the
foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or ‘LT17). The amendment and accompanving example state that LTT are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and 1AS 28 and
explain the annual sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company s financial statements.

Amcndments to [AS 19 *Employee Benefits’- Plan Amendment, Curailment or Scttlement (effective for annual peniods beginning on or after 1 January 2009). The
amendments clarity that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current
service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when caleulating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with
separately in other comprehensive income, The application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on the Company 's fAnancial statements.

Annual improvementys to (FRS Standards 200 3-200 7 Cvele - the improvements address amencments fo foliowing approved accounting standaeds:

IFES 3 "Business Combinations" and IFRS 11 "Joint Arrangement" - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when a company increases its interest in a joint
operation that meets the definition of a business. A company remeasures its previously held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A company
does not remeasure its previously held interest ina joint operation when it obtains joint conmol of the business,

145 12 "Income Taxes" - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payvments on financial instruments classified as equity) ane
recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distmbutable profis,

145 23 "Borrowing Costs” - the amendment clarifies that a company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop an asset when the assetis
readly for its intended use or sale.

The above amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019 and are not likely o heve an impact on the Company's Gnancial statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below, The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements:

Property, plant and equipment
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any, except lease hold land, factory building and office premises which are stated at revalued
amount less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, ifany.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount as appropriste, only when it is probable that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized, All other repairs and maintenance are charpad to the
profit und loss account during the vear in which they are incurred.

A item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no [uture economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arsing
on derecognition of the asset {caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profitand loss account in
the year in which the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation 15 charged to profitand loss account applying written down value method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset 1s written of U over its useful life mthe
rates specified in note & the financial statements, Depreciation on additions is charged from the day in which asset is available for use and on disposals up to the day
immediately preceding that of deletion,

The assets' residual values, usefal lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end. The Company’s estimate of residual value of property and
equipment at year end did not require any adjustment as its impact is considered insigni ficant.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of assets s recognised in other comprehensive meome and presented as a separate component ol equity as “Revaluation
surplus on property, plant snd equipment”™. except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case
the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease in carrying amount ansing on the revaluation of land, buildings and
plant & machinery is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, keld in the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment relating toa
previous revaluation of that asset. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company s shareholders, The surplus on revaluation to the extent of

[F ]
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ineremental depreciation charged is transferred to unappropriated profit,

Capital work - in - progress 15 stated at cost lesg accumulated impairment losses, it any, All expenditures connected to the specific assets incurmed during installation wnd
comstruction period are carried under capital work - in- progress. These are ransferred to specified assets as and when assets are available for wse,

4.2 Stores, spares and loose tools
Stores, spares and loose tools excluoding items in transit ave valued at lower of average cost and net realizable value, Provisien 15 made for slow moving and obsolete items.
Items in transit are valoed at cost comprising invoice values plus other charges incurmed thereon acoumulated to the balance sheet date.

Metrealizable value signifies the estimared selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

4.3 Stock in trade
Raw materials and finished goods are valeed at lower of average cost and net realizable value,

Work-in-process 15 valued at average cost of rew-matenals inclouding a proportionate of manefacturing overheads. By products and waste products are valued at net
realisable value,

Costof nished goods includes cost ol direct materials, labour and approprate portion of manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to be
ingurred to make the sale.

Provision is made i the financial statements azainst slow moving and obsolete stock-in-trade based on management’s hest estimate regarding their future nsability
whenever necessary and is recognised in the statement of profitor loss,

44 Trade debts and other receivables
Trade debts and other receivables are stated at origimal invoice amount less provision for doubtful debts © receivahles, ifany. Provision for doubtful debts |/ receivables is
hased on the management's assessment of customers’ outstanding balances and credit worthiness, Bad debts are written-off when identified.

4.5 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash and bank balances. Short term runming finances that are repayable on demond and form an integral part of the Company®s cash
management policy are also included as a component of cash equivalents for the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

4.6 Staff retirement benefits
The Company aperates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all permanent emplovees. Contribution is made to this scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations, The
actuarial valuation is carmied out using the Projected Linit Credit Method

Staffretirement benefits are payable fo staff on completion of prescribed qualifyving period of service under the scheme,
All remeasurement gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.

4.7 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payvables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current if payment 15 due within one vear or less (or in notmal operating cycle ofbusiness, if longer). if not. they are classified as non current linbalities. Linbilities for trade
and other amounts payable are carried at amortised cost.

4.8 Provisions
A provision i recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constmective obligation as a result of past events and it is probahle that an outflow of
resourees will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the outflow can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate,

4.9 Taxation
The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax, Tax is recognized i the profit and loss account, except to the extent that it relates fo stems recognized in
other comprehensive incoma or dircetly in eguity,

Current

Current tax is the amount of tax pavable on taxable income for the year, using tax rate enacted by or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, amd any adjustment to the
tax payable in respect of previous year. Provision for current tax is based on higher of the taxable income at corrent rates of taxation in Pakistan after taking into account tax
credits, rebates and exemptions available, ifany or minimum tax w's 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 after aking into account tax credits or Altemative corporate tax w's
[13C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, However, for income covered under final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax rates under such regime. The amount of
unpaid income tax in respect of the current or prior periods is recognized as a liability. Any excess paid over what is due in respeet of the curment or prior periods is recognized
5 AN assel.

Deferred
Dreferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences arising at the balance sheet dute between the tax base of assets and liabilitics
und their carmying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deeferred tax linbilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recogmised for all deductible temporary differences fo the extent that it is
probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which the assets may be utilized. Deferred 1ax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realized.

Deterred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is sertled. based on the tax rates
(and tax faws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

410 Hevenue recognition
Revenue ansing from the sale of goods 15 recognised when all of the following crteria have been satisfied:
- the Company has transferred to the customer the significant risks and rewards of ownership;
- the Company retains neither continuing managerial invelvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
- it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow go the company and;
- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the ransaction can be measured reliably.
Revenue is measured at the fair value ofthe consideration received or receivable.
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4.13.2

4.13.3

4.14

4.15

4.16

Borrowing costs
Borrowings costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except, to the extent of horrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, ifany, are capitalized as part of the cost ofthat asset.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies ane converted mto Rupees at the rate ofexchange ruling on the date ol tronsaction. Monetary sssets and habilities i oreign curmencies ane
translated into Rupees af the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date, All exchange differences ansing on transaction are charged o profit and loss account in that
period.

Financial instruments

Classification of Financial assets

The Company elassifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profitor loss, loans and receivables, available-for-sale and held to matunity, The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired, Management determines the classification of its financial assets at the time of initial
recogmition,

Available for sale

Available-for-sale Ninancial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-
curment assets unless management intends w dispose of the nvestments within twelve months from the balance sheet dote. When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjusiments recognized directly in equity are included in the profit and loss account as gains and losses from investment
securities. Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using effective interest method is recognized in the profit and loss account. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognized in the profit and loss account when the Company s right to receive payment is established.

Fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated wpon initial recognition as at fair value through profitor
Inss, A financial asset is classified as held for mading ifacquired principally for the purpose of selling in the shor term,

Held to maturity
Held -to- maturity financial assets are these with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where management has the pesitive intention and ability to hobd qll
muaturity. These are carried at amortized cost.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than twelve months after the balance sheet date. which are classified as non-eurrent assets.

Hecoznition and measurement of financial assets
All Fimancial assets are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular purchases and safes of
investments are recognized at trade date 1.2, the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are initiallv recognized at fair value plus transaction costs for all finencial assets not carried at fair value through profit and loss. Financial assets carried at
fair value throwgh profit and loss are initial by recognized at fir value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account,

Available-for-sale fnancial assets and Mnancial assets at fair valoe through profit and loss are subsequently carried ot fr value. In case ofavailable for sale financial assets,
the change in fair value is recognised in other comprebensive income and in case of financial assets classified as fmr value through profit and [oss, the chanpge is recognised in
profit and loss account for the vear.

"The fair values of quoted mvestiments are based on quoted prices. In case quoted prices are not available, the Company establishes fair value using a valuation technique.
The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use of market inputs, relies as lintle as possible on estimates specific to the Company, incorporates all factors that market
participants would consider in setting a price, and is consistent with accepted economic methodologics for pricing financial instruments. Inputs to valuation technigues
reasonably represent market expectations and measures of the nsk-return factors inherent in the financial instrument. The Company calibrates valuation technigues and tests
them for validitv using prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on other available ohservable market data,

Financial assets are derecognized when the nights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

The Company assesses of eéach balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of Iinancial assets is impaired. I any such evidence
exists for available for-sale finoncial assets, the cumulative loss that had been recopnized in other comprehensive income 15 reclassified from equity to profit and loss
account as a reclassification adjustment. Impairment losses recognized in the profit and loss account on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are not reversed
throwgh the profitand loss account.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the mstruments. A financial liability is derecogmised
when the obligation under the liabality is discharged, cancelled or expired.

OfTsetting
Financial assets and linbilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amoumt and the company intends either to settle on 2 net basis or o realize the assets and seitle the labilites simultaneowsly.

Impairment

The carrying amount of all assets not carried at fair value, is reviewed at cach balance sheet date to determine whether theve is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. Impairment loss is recognised in profit and loss account whenever carrving amount of an assets exceeds
its recoverable amount.

Dividends and appropriations to reserves
Dividend distribution to the Company's sharcholders 1s recogmised as a lability in the period in which the dividends are approved.

CHANGE INACCOUNTING POLICY

The Company has changed ifs accounting policy for the revaluation surplus on property, plant and egquipment, i accordance with the requirements of the secounting wnd
reporting slandards as applicable in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2007, Previously, the Company 's accounting policy for surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
cquipment was in accordance with the provisions of section 235 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, Further, the revaluation surplus on property, plant and
equipment was shown as a separate item below equity, in accordance with the presentation requirement of the repealed Companies Ordinance. 1984,
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shown as a separate item below equity, in accordance with the presentation requirement of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984,

The Companies Act, 2017 has not retained the above mentioned specific accounting and presentation
requirements of revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment. Consequently, this impacted the
Company's accounting policy for revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment, and now the related
accounting and presentation requirements set out in International financial reporting standards are being
tollowed by the Company. Further, the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is now
presented in the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity as a capital reserve i.e.

part of equity.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the requirements
of IAS B “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” and the corresponding figures
have been restated. The effect of retrospective application in case of the Company has resulted in
reclassification of surplus on revaluation to reserves. There is no other impact of the retrospective
application on the amounts of surplus presented in prior years,

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets

Capital work In progress

6.1

As at June 30, 2016
Cost | Bevalosed pmoumt
Avccumubsted depreciation

Year ended June 3, 2017
Opening net book valie
Ackditions [/ translers
Disposals

Cost

Accumalated deprecation

Depreciation for the vear
Closmg net book value

As at June 30, 2017

Cost ! Revahied amount
Accumulsted depreciation

Year ended June 30, 2018
Opening net book value
Adiditions / trunsters

Disposals
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Depreciation for the year
Closimg net book vahse

As ot June 30, 2018

Cost ) Revalued amoumt
Aceuwmulated depreciation

Annual Fates of depreciation

Operating Fixed Assets

Note
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
RUPEES RUPEES
fr.{ 1,613,394,656 1,620,000,780
6.2 49,648,755 7.349.561
1.663.043.411 1,627,350,341
Leasehald Fﬂti:l?ry {lI'E:ce I?Ianf HI1I:|. (?I’ﬁun Co !rq:mlr:r Furniture Vehicles Total
land huilding premises machinery equipment  equipment  and fivtures
- Rupees i
112 0RO 442 852 662 H7.972. 5357 LoB0T25 207 LLA2.775 2361 650 5505486 55388590 2518 308,736
= (75,899,704} (46.925315)  (TERTALI99) (4109257}  (L619340) (23790861 (30307903) {S45.069.713)
12,000,000 366,952,958  161,047.042  B%6,984,008 7,215,518 742410 3206400 25080687 1,573,239.023
112,000,000 366,952,958 6l 47,042 R9G.SEO0E 7215518 LA 3206400 25080687 1.573,230.023
- 2125920 2527403 I66.650.711 104,500 B6,T40 1377417 15229308 188,700,089
- - - (A3.841,047) = {107 085) = (11,265 194) {45,318 224)
- - - 28154654 - B - 6,545 501 35,190,234
= 2 = (5,T87253) = (17.136) = (4.323.603) {10,127.5492)
- (1837 1.606) (80693801 (99.0:41,742) (4039} (235428) (375503) (50416200 (131900340
12,000,000 350,705,272 155,880,644 955,805,724 6,869,379 576,586 4,218,314 309448601 1.620,000,780
112,000,000 444 076,582 210,899 760 1515433971 I1,807.275 1341314 6072005 59348794 2.661,780,59%0
- (94 271 310 (S5019016)  (RS462E24T)  (4937806)  (L7e472R)  (27M5R%)  (2RA0G035)  (LM1TT0R19)
112,000,000 350,705,272 155,880,644 958,805,724 6,869,379 576,586  4,218.314 30944861  1.620,000,780
H12.000.000 330,705,272 155,880,644 Q58,805,724 6,869,379 576,586 4218314 3004861 1,620,000, 750
- 830684 211572 128429758 542715 144,063 H35.29% TA55045 141413284
- (25413,087) - - {4, 7 R0y § 29 R3AHT)
- - - 12330486 - - - 2485933 14,816,439
- - - (13.452601) = - - (1,531,847} (150014.448)
- (17.568301) (7.H39,552) (99.762,744) (718.237) {196,243) (452549 (6467.334) (133,004,560
112000000 334.967.655 150,216,813 973,990,137 6,693,857 514,406 46001063 30400725  1.6013.394.656
112,000,000 A0, 80T, 206 213075481 1,906,005, 642 12,345 50 2A85 377 7108201 (2, 786039 2,073,362 590
- (1T1LR3%A11) (HIASE66H)  (H0e0505)  (5656,133) (1960870 (3207,138) (323853140 (1,159.968.340)
112,000,000 334967655 150,216,813 973,990,137 6,693,457 514,406 4,601,063 30400725 1,613,394,656
L 5% 5% 10% 0% 0% 10% %

BT
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6.1.1 Leasehold lands of the Company are located at A-265 S.I.T.E, Nooriabad, Sindh and E-11, S.L.T.E., Kotri
Sindh with an area of 111,320 and 156,090 square yards respectively.

6.1.2 The Company measure its land, buildings and office premises using revaluation model. The latest
revaluation of land, building, plant and machinery was carried out by an independent valuer M/s. Joseph
Lobo as on June 30, 2016 on the basis of present market values for similar sized land in the vicinity and

replacement values of similar type of buildings adjusted for depreciation factor for the existing assets in use.

6.1.3 Forced sales value of leasehold land, buildings and office premises based on the valuation conducted in June

2016 by independent valuer was Rs 648.40 million.

Had there been no revaluation, the book value of land, buildings and plant and machinery would have been

as follows:
Note
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
RUPEES RUPEES

Leasehold land 46.384.040 46,384,040
Factory building 93,699,309 96,738,592
Office premises 101.481.813 104,580,644
241,565,162 247,703,276

6.1.4 The following operating fixed assets with a net book value exceeding Rs, 500,000 were disposed off during

the year.
Paricular Cost Accumulated Book Sales [Gamﬂ}J’Loss Particulars  Mode OF
Of Assels s De preciation Value Proceeds . o Of Purchaser Disposal
Disposal
Rupees
Spinnmg Frames FA-503 315000000 1,106,500 2043 500) 1661017 3H2 483 |K&B Brothers |Negotation
Autocone Machme 1 2,600,000 4,786,119 T.813.881 3262707 4,551,174 |K&B Brothers  |Negotation
Ring Frames FA-503 3250000 1,313,382 1,936,618 | 1,794,872 141,746 |Hassan & Co.  |Negotation
Autocone Savio Espero 5710042 4069 981 1,640,061 032202 07,859 |K&B Brothers |Negotation
Honda City | 230,000 216,884 1.033,116 1 020,000 13,116 |Sadia Naseem |Negotation
Other items having net
book value of less than 1ETO R4S 3,323,573 547272 T34.500 (187,228 Various Various
R, S00,000 each
2018 20 830,887 14,816,439 15,014,448 9,405,298 5,609,150
2017 45318.226 35,190,234 10,127,992 8083100 2,044,592
6.1.5 Depreciation is allocated as under
Cost of sales 26 117,331,045 117,413,348
Administrative expenses 27 15,673,915 14,486,992
133,004,960 131,900,340
6.2  Capital work in progress
Advance to contractors for civil works 4,326,178 7,349,561
Plant and Machinery 45,322,877 %
49,048,755 7.349 561
7 LONG TERM ADVANCES AND DEPOSITS
Long term advances 437.500 437,500
Long term security deposils 13.184.774 13,179,429
13,622,274 13,616,929
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Note
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
RUPEES RUPEES
8 STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 40,886,011 36,602,233
Spares 35.418.634 34.771.813
Loose tools 580,152 897,026
76,884,797 T2.271,072
9 STOCK IN TRADE
Raw material 903,768,184 493 840,380
Work - in - process 43,926,468 33.949. 875
Finished goods 258,587,826 294,627,593
Waste 25,326,861 3,189,691
9./ 1.231.609,339 825,607,539

9.1 This includes stocks amounting to Rs. 1,113/- million (2017: Rs. 625/- million) pledged with banks as
security with banks against finance facilities.(refer note 23)

10 TRADE DEBTS
Considered good

Export trade debts - secured 38,221,064 5,909,835

Local trade debts - unsecured 606,875,274 509,479,489
645,096,338 515,389,324

Less: Provision for impairment (4,238.453) (5,707.446)
640,857,885 509,681 R78

11 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Staft and workers 11.1 720,389 1,135,179
Advance to suppliers 37,583,906 37,997,959
38,304,295 39,153,138

11.1  This represents interest free advances provided to employees in accordance with the Company’s policy. The
advances are secured against retirement benefits and are recoverable in equal monthly installments.

12 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Bank guarantee and margin 12,1 57,273,144 32.692.890

Special excise duty refundable 2.484.766 2,484,766

Receivable against GID Cess 13,666,363 13,666,363

Deposit to HESCO 17,238,893 17,238,893

Other receivable 116.796.683 33.113.644
207,459,849 99,196,556

12.1  This is margin deposited against bank guarantees issued by different banks as disclosed in note # 24. These
are term deposit receipts earning a markup at a rate of 4.6% - 5.25% per annum (2017; 3.5% - 4%,).

1] .
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13

14

14.1

14.2

15.1

16

17

MNote
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
RUPEES RUPEES
TAX REFUND DUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Income tax refundable 24.278.286 29.718,159
Sales tax refundable 91.210.017 93,299 054
115,488,303 123,017,213
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 1.981.453 636,105
Cash at bank - current accounts 4.1 96,612,337 11,375,406
Cash at bank - deposit accounts 14.2 437.192 18,478,329
99,030,982 30,489 840

}

The Company has issued post dated cheques to Sindh High Court against GID Cess amounting to Rs.
74,994,161/- (2017: Nil)

Mark-up rate on PLS accounts ranges from 3.75% to 4.5% per annum on daily product basis (2017: 2.5% to
3% per annumy).

ISSUED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL

2018 2017
— Number of shares —

12,711,985 9,119,500 Ordmary shares of Rs.10/- each 127,119,850 91.195.000
issued as fully paid in cash

6.500.000 . 500,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 65,000,000 65,000,000
issued as fully paid as bonus

19,211,985 15,619,500 192,119,850 156,195,000

The associated company Nadeem Power Generation (Private) Limited held 3,604,500 (2017: 3.604,500)
ordinary shares at the year end.

REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT

Balance as at July 01

Less: Incremental depreciation transferred to retained earnings

Less: Related deferred tax on revaluation

LONG TERM FINANCING

From banking companies - secured 17.1

Less: current portion

370,882,640 386,949,308
(15,263,334) (16,066,668)
355,619,306 370,882,640
(31,008,187) (33,156,194)
324,611,119 337,726,446
245,248,580 194,617,285
(96,965,019) (96,605,219)
148,283,561 98,012,066

[
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18.1

Gratuity

Y
17.1  The principal details of loan facilities availed by the Company are as follows:
Facility He payvme ni
Lender  |June 30, 2018 |June 30, 2017 Purpose Amount (Rs. Security Pricing :’::'m
millions} )
) . Joint pari pasu charge of Rs
. To Purchase Kotri Unit of s : .
Sunrfnlﬂank 12,500,000 37500000 |Shadman  Cotton Mills 125 167 milllon with Bank J\I-]"_ﬂhh. 6 month afu.lge 10 I:I!.S[E'Illﬂ'll. nis
Limited = over property located at E-11,|KIBOR + 2% pa. |Semi annually
Larmiged SR
SITE KotrL
To et capital expediture First exchisive amd specifice
10,242 641 requirements and retirement 86 charge of Re.54m over machinery]3  month  average| 12 installments
o of LCs for mport  of mported  (mew) Le Muratac|KIBOR + 2,5% uarterky .
rmachinery Auto cone winder Machmes.
o et capint expecie First exchisve aml specifice
requircments amd procecds charee of Rs.58m over machineryl3 month KIBOR + 12 Instaliments
2,000,000 4663620 |shall be utdied  for 8 £ OV OREAE . S Payable
E 3 e mparted  (new) Le  Muratac|2 5%
retirement of  LC-Sight : . Chaesrterly
: Auwto cone winder Machmes,
already established.
:'E':U JT:r:e ';:p:::i TTIF: :1:::1'-1 E}:-:; L:II:E:';:m E:::r :}?;'2—; Aat My of. ey 12 installments
21,000,000 | 35000000 |COUIrEmEnts and retiement} o, L - ey arter KIBOR (3] - ™
of LCs for mpont of mported  (new)  Le  Muratac Month) + 2,5% Cuarterhy .
15 Bank machinery Auto cone winder Machmes. ik
First exclisive and specific
To mwet capital expediture hypodheeation charge of Rs 4435 m
H0.036.500 requirements and retirement over machmery imported (new | 2.5% by Bank and)20 mstallments
Ly of LCs for impor of ie Caterpilar pas generator]2.5% by SBP quarterly,
machinery CG 170-20 of  1953KW
77 441KV A
First exchlisive amd specifice
To meet capital expediure charge of Rs 325 m over
32,200,000 requirements and retirement machinery mported (new) Le|2.5% by Bank and]20 mstallments
Ty of LCs for  mmport  off GE  Jenebacher Gas Genset|2.5% by SBP cpuarterly.
machinery JGS 420 GS-N.L 'BOY 1500
KW
T Tonctoms Kot Unit-of Jl:?l nF'::]llri:.mm:r:]:h;;E:riu:%f; 6 month  average] 10 installments
12,500,000 37500000 |Shadman  Cotton  Mills 125 ; d bl . '
e owver property Incated at E-11,JKIBOR + 2% pa. jsemi annualby
Limited )
SITE Kotri,
Chearterly
Bank ALfalah "“”‘“I" ks |
. | s annual principa
. _ Exchizive and specific charge ;
50.012.080 62.515.100 fnrllmp:.-l[ orn used Murata -0 GF Rs. T0 million o6 5 mirat & menih KIBOR +ipayment in amears
210 Auto winders 5 3 2% pua. after grace
200 auowinder, ;
period of 1 vear
from 151
drawdown
First pari  pasu  charge  off
3 s 3 month average .
Ac 3 4 : 5. 72.629 - ' - : stafliments
i Bl . 2 159180 "'l.LE]_I:III".,d for - short  term 34547 [R=. 72.629m over fised ﬁH—‘SE‘!b ui’ KIBOR + 1.5% Ie mstoflments
TECUITE IR LS. the company A-265 SITE 4 neartorly .
Nooriabad. En.
First pari pasu charge of Rz 367m
Acquired  for  permansm 2 over  all present and  future)l month KIBOR +H|8 mstallments
. . 5' ¥ N ; y e : G
R Aark Tasi A wiorking capital facility 2 stocks  and  recervables  with 2% poa, quarterly
25% rEargin.
Pen pasn change ‘of Radd 3 month  averape
Allied Bank i 4,936,744 Ac‘ql_:;rcd for shor  term 454 million over foxed E!!i.'il:L‘l- of the KIBOR + 1.5% 4 mstaliments
TOQUIrEITIETINS. COMPRNY A-265 SITE . Chaarterly .
Nooriabad P
Tevtal 245,248,580 184 517,285
Note
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
18 DEFERRED LIABILITIES RUPEES RUPEES
Gratuity 18.1 63,250,494 59,091,849
Deferred taxation - net 18.2 - 20,091,879

63,250,494

79,183,728

As disclosed in note 4.6, the company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its staff employees. The
latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at June 30, 2018, using the Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost
Method.

[T71]
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18.1.1

18.1.2

18.1.3

18.1.4

18.1.5

18.1.6

18.1.7

Movement in defined benefit obligation

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost

Interest Cost

Benefits paid

Remeasurements

Closing defined benefit obligation

Expense recognized in the profit and loss account

Current service cost
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation

Remeasurement losses / (gains) recognised in other
comprehensive income

Actuarial losses / (gains) on defined benefit obligation due to
-Changes in financial assumptions
-Experience adjustments

Movement in net liability in the balance sheet

Balance as at July 01

Expense charged to profit and loss

Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive income
Benetits paid

Balance as at June 30

Note

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
RUPEES RUPEES
59,091,849 51,290,110
24,064,685 22,188,635

3.619,327 3,027,025
(24,781,713) (19,076,074)
1.256.346 1,662,153
63,250,494 59,091,849
24.064,685 22,188,035
3,619,327 3,027,025
27684012 25,215,660
81,599 32,004
1,174,747 1,630,149
1,256,346 1,662,153
59,091,849 51,290,110
27,684,012 25,215,660
1,256,346 1,062,153
(24,781,713) (19,076,074)
063,250,494 59,091,849

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation for the current year and pervious four years is as

follows:

2018 2017
Present value of defined benefit obligation 63,250,494  5909] 849
Experience adjustments on obligations 1,256,346 1,662,153

Year end sensitivity analysis on Defined Benefit Obligation

Discount Rate + 100 bps
Discount Rate - 100 bps
Salary Increase + 100 bps
Salary Increase -100 bps

Note

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation 1s 5 Years.

Principal assumptions used in valuation of gratuity

Discount rate used for interest cost in profit and loss
Discount rate used for year end obligation
Expected rate of increase in salary level (per annum)

Mortality rates

2015
Rupees -
51,290,110
8907015

June 30, 2018

RUPEES

60,003,933
66,944,294
66,980,849
59.917.815

7.75%
9.00%

7.00%

SLIC 2001-2005

37,760,600

2014

41,157,373

2,214,092

June 30, 2017

RUPEES

55,929,125
62,696,448
62,732,567
55,844,312

7.75%
7.75%

5.75%

SLIC 2001-2005

=7l
134
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18.2 Deferred Taxation Note
; T : June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
Deferred tax liability in respect of: RUPEES RUPEES
- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 31,008,187 33,156,194
- Accelerated tax depreciation 84.399 481 90 485,775
115,407,668 132,641,969
Deferred tax asset in respect of:
- Provisions for doubtful debt (1.271,536) (1,712.234)
- Provisions for gratuity (8.901,242) (9,600,850)
- Excess of minimum tax carried forward 1821 (119,698,289) (75,989.616)
- Carry forward of Tax losses (8.665,578) (25,247.390)
(138,536,645) (112,550,090)
(23,128,977) 20,091,879

18.2.1 This represents excess tax over and above the normal tax payable under provision of section 113 of income
tax ordinance 2001. The excess amount of tax paid can be carried forward and adjusted against tax liability
for five tax years immediately succeeding the tax year.

19 LOAN FROM ASSOCIATE

Madeem Power Generation (Private) Limited (NPGL) 10,120,371 17,698,058
Nadeem International (Private) Limited (NTPL) 386.650,000 401,000,000
396,770,371 418,698,058
Less : Current portion shown under current liabilities
MNadeem International (Private) Limited (80,000,000) {121,000,000)
19.1 316,770,371 297,698,058

19.1  This represents loan provided by related parties NPGL and NIPL on June 29, 2013 and April 28, 2015
respectively on renewable terms which may be extended for such period as may be mutually agreed by
companies after expiry of the repayment period. These loans are interest free and repayable within 13
months from July 01, 2018,

20 LOAN FROM DIRECTOR

This represents director’s loans that is interest-free and repayable on-demand

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 432,892,928 339,803,742
Accrued expenses 21.1 212,468,618 133,343.213
Provision against ETO 10,017,753 9,927,055
Advances from customer 18,105,030 14,335,996
Worker's profit participation fund payable 9,038,619 1,287,686
Worker's welfare fund payable 3,434,675 -
685,957,623 498,697,692

21.1  This includes Rs. 21.04 million (2017: 18.17 million) due to Associated Undertaking Nadeem Power
Generation (Pvt) Limited against electric bill.

22 ACCRUED MARK - UP

Long - term financing 1,840,262 2989381
Short - term borrowings 37,297,768 21,168,110
39,138,030 24,157,491

2]
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23

23.2

233

24

Note  June30,2018  June 30,2017
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS RUPEES RUPEES
Secured
Bank Al - Falah Limited 390,712,877 251,117,727
Soneri Bank Limited 542,006,064 78,759,798
J. S. Bank Limited 513,796,730 224,541,845
Samba Bank Limited 169,323,235 245,271,238
23.1 1.615,838,906 799,690,608
Foreign currency loan
Soneri Bank Limited FE-25 = 345,966,091
JS Bank Limited FE-25 - 63,630,000
232 - 409,596,091
Soneri bank limited (overdratft) 130,374 -

1,615,969,280 1,209,286.699

These represent short term working capital finance facilities secured against pledge of stocks (Cotton, Yarn,
fibre and Spares), and export bills under collection, local trade debts of the Company and charge over
current assets, The rate of mark-up for running finance ranges (@ KIBOR + 2% per annum (2017: KIBOR +
1.5% to KIBOR + 2.0% per annum), KIBOR ranged from 1 month, 3 months and 6 months.

The applicable rate of mark-up on foreign currency finance has been LIBOR + 2% to LIBOR + 2.5% per
annum (2017: LIBOR + 2% to LIBOR + 3.9% per annum). This represents NIL Foreign Exchange loan as at
June 30, 2018 (2017: $ 3,901,578.15).

The unavailed facility of total short term borrowings amount to Rs 439 million (2017: Rs 426 million).

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Company filed a suit before the High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability of Gas Infrastructure
Cess Act 2011, The Sindh High Court has restrained the Federation and gas companies from recovering GID
Cess over and above Rs. 13 per MMBTU. On August 22, 2014, the Supreme Court of Pakistan declared that
the levy of GID cess as a tax was not levied in accordance with the Constitution and hence not vahid.

In September 2014, the Federal Government promulgated Gas Infrastructure Cess (GIDC) Ordinance No. VI
of 2014 to circumvent earlier decision of the Supreme Court on the ground that GIDC was a 'Fee' and not a
Tax'. In May 20135, the said Ordinance was approved in the Parliament and became an Act.

The company has challenged GIDC Act, 2015 challenging the vires and legality of the levy and demand of
GIDC including its retrospective application.

Since this issue 1s being faced by industry at large and in light of aforementioned developments, the
management is of the view that there is no need fo maintain any provision against this liability and
accordingly the Company has deferred the recognition of expense against such billings amounting to Rs.
226.31 million (2017: 180.83 million) based on the advice of its legal counsel.

Commitments

Following commitments exists as of reporting date;

Against letters of credit 68,622,408 B8, 782,160
Bank guarantee to Excise and Taxation department 26.875.753 185,700,000
Bank guarantee to HESCO 10,290,000 10,290,000
Revolving Letter of credit to SSGC 33,822,955 33,822,955
FBP outstanding 1.109.736.813 493,546,942
Civil contractor 5,157,475 2,955,382
Post dated cheques 74,994,161 -

5]
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26

26.1

26.2

SALES-NET
Local sales

Exports - direct
Exports - indirect

Duty drawback
Wastage sales
Raw material sales

Less:
Commission on export sales
Commission on local sales

Premium on discounting of the export bill

COST OF SALES

Raw material consumed
Stores and spares consumed
Packing material consumed

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Repair and maintenance
Insurance

Fuel and power

Other manufacturing expenses
Depreciation

Work in process:
Opening

Closing

Cost of goods manufactured
Cost of raw material sold

Finished goods and waste:
Opening ;
Closing

Raw material consumed
Opening
Add: Purchases

Raw material sold
Closing stock

This includes staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 23.59 million (2017: 20.14 million).

MNote

26,1

26.2

6.1.4

June 30, 2018

Nadeem

June 30, 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
2,910,406,964 2,728,151,812
2,780,735,359 2.152.251.712

612,079,710 272,859,710
3,392,815,069 2,425,111,422
6,303,222,033 5,153,263,234

110,415,893 29,131,091

87,955,440 79,546,707
2 10,858,031

198,371,333 119,535,829

(19,242,791) (17.590,767)

(23,518,654) (13.954.861)

(17,601,448) (11,240,066)

(60,362,893) (42.785.694)
6,441,230,473 5,230,013,369
4,455,377,239 3,723,768,887

112,689,857 77,251,412

111,326,169 92,967,558

487,360,179 445,392,805

9,355,237 5,705,552
17,990,010 10,349,717
536,392,583 458,960,200
25,521,798 28,581,015

117,331,045 117,413,348

5.873,344,117 4.960,390.494
33,949,875 31.753.397
(43,926,468) (33.949.875)
9,976,593) (2,196,478)
5,863,367,524 4,958.194.016
= 12,170,118
297,817,284 250,541,055
(283,914,687) (297.817.284)
13,902,597 (47,276,229)
5.877,270,121 4,923,087.905

493,840,380 399,860,421
4,865,305,043 3,829.918.964
5.359,145,423 4,229,779.385

% (12,170,118)
(903.768,184) (493,840.380)

4,455,377,239

3,723,768,887

R ——
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27

27.1

27.2

28

28.1

29

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES N Sune 30,2018 June 30, 2017
RUPEES RUPEES
Directors' remuneration 38 6,000,000 6.200.000
Salaries and other benefits 27.1 34,133,947 33,302.117
Traveling conveyance 5,318,245 4.611.834
Legal and professional 4,543,783 2,789 832
Fees and subscription 1.597.286 1,726,125
Rent, rates and taxes 1,274,322 861,433
Electricity, gas and water 4,556,838 6,166,212
Repair and maintenance 2,609,453 2.007.342
Communication expenses 2.165.740 2.142 364
Printing and stationery 2,793,155 2,854 387
Motor vehicle expenses 9.126.354 6.585.583
Advertisement expenses 113,019 157,173
Entertainment expenses 2.328.716 2,426,062
Audit fee 27.2 1,172,000 1,172,200
Miscellaneous expenses 919,162 1.028.709
Depreciation 6.1.4 15.673.915 14,486,992
94,325,935 BE 518,365
This includes staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 4.09 million (2017: 5.07 million).
Auditors Remuneration
Audit fee 880,000 880.000
Half yearly review 215,000 215.000
Code of Corporate Governance 50,000 50,000
Other certifications 17,200 17,200
Out of pocket Expenses 10,000 10,000
1,172,200 1,172,200
DISTRIBUTION COST
Freight and octroi charges 22.905.408 16,318.632
Export selling expenses 8.028.840 7,117,853
Foreign travelling expense 3,957,500 2,696,678
Trailer charges 10,753.230 5.499.510
Export insurance charges 2,918,533 2,407,855
Stamp duty on export sales 8,339,910 5,318,790
Ocean freight 14,469,381 16,987 818
Export development charges 6.801.127 5,318,772
Others 28.1 8,889,662 6,664,078
87.063,591 71.329 986

This includes charges in respect of stamp duty on local sales, Letter of credit expenses, sales promotion,

export and foreign bank charges and forwarding charges.

OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Profit on savings deposit accounts
Bad debts recovered

(zain on disposal of Shares
Fental Income

3,359,609 1,414,725
- 39,049

- 667,610
10,000 10,000
3,369,609 2,131,384

B
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Note
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES RUPEES RUPEES
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 6.1.3 5,609,150 2,044,892
Loss on exchange rate difference 22,355,593 1,770,180
Workers profit participation fund 9,038,619 1,287,686
Workers welfare fund 3,434,675 -
40,438,037 5,102,758
FINANCE COST —~
Mark-up on:
Short term financing 150,095,853 90,905,339
Long term financing 12,507,556 18,108,493
162,603,409 109,013,832
Interest on workers profit participation fund 48.426 -
Bank charges and guarantee commission 14,551,476 10,597,658
177.203.311 119,611,490
TAXATION
Current year 59,555,976 35.644.506
Prior year 1,831,367 (3.863.150)
Deferred (42,843,952) (14,413,115)
18,543,391 17.368.241
Income tax assessments of the Company are deemed to be finalized as per tax retumns file up to tax year

2017, Tax returns are subject to further assessment under provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
i) p

{"the Ordinance") unless selected for an audit by the taxation authorities. The Commissioner of Income Tax

may, at any time during a period of five years from date of filing of return, select a deemed assessment order

for audit.

Tax charge for the year ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 represents minimum tax and final tax payable under
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, and for this reason, relationship between tax expense and accounting
profit has not been presented. Further, comparison of last three years of income tax provision with tax
assessed is presented below:

Provision for

Accounting period Tax vear A Tax assessed
Rupees

June 30, 2017 2017 35,644 506 37475872

June 30, 2016 2016 43,130,568 43,130,568

June 30, 2015 2015 45332708 45,359 141

To comply with the requirements od Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, the Board of Directors
of the Company in their meeting has disclosed sufficient cash dividend / bonus shares for the vear ended
June 30, 2018, Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed profits has been recognised in these
financial statements.

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Basic earnings per share

Profit after taxation 149,755,096 T.126,008

Number of shares

Restared
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 18,548,157 18,548,157
Rupees
Restated
Earning per share B.07 0.44

Diluted earnings per share

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company as it has not issued any
instruments carrying options which could have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.

[0l
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34

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non cash and other items;

Depreciation expense 6.1.4
Provision for gratuity 18.1.2
Giain on disposal of investments

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 6.1.3
Provision for workers profit participation fund

Provision for workers welfare fund

Finance cost 3l

Operating profit before working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debis

Loans and advances

Deposits and other receivables

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net cash (used in) / generated from operations

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
168,299,087 24,494,249
133,004,960 131,900,340
27,684,012 25,215,660
" (667,610)
5,609,150 2,044,892
9,038,619 2
3,434,675 -
177,203,311 119,611,490
355,974,727 278.104,772
524,273,814 302,599,021
(4,613,725) (946,024)
(406,001,800) (143,452 ,666)
(131,176,007) 15,857,548
848,843 (21,317,986)
(106,174,256) (98,767.362)
(647,116,945) (248.626.490)
176,074,323 131,586,855
53,231,192 185,559,386

Cash and cash equivalents at financial statemenis date as shown in the cash flow statement comprise of

following:
Note

Cash and bank balances
Short term borrowings

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets:
Loans and receivables
Long term deposits
Trade debts
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities:
At amortized cost
Long term financing
Trade and other payables
Accrued mark-up
Short term borrowings
Unclaimed dividend

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
99,030,982 30,489,840
(1,615,969,280)  (1.209,286.699)
(1,516,938,298)  (1.178.796.859)
13,622,274 13,616,929
640,857,885 509,681,878
207,459,849 99,196,556
09,030,982 30,489 540
960,970,990 652.985.203
245,248,580 194,617,285
685,957,623 498,697,692
39,138,030 24,157,491
1,615.969,280 1,209,286,699
1,478,723 1,478,601
2.587.792.236 1.928,237.768
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37
37.1

37.1.1

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial risk management

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of
financial instruments:

- Credit risk
- Liguidity risk
- Market nisk

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause
the other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral.
Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with
the same party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly atfected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of
credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum eredit exposure. To reduce the exposure to
credit risk the Company has developed a policy of obtaining advance payments from its customers. Except
for customers relating to the Government and certain small and medium sized enterprises, the management
strictly adheres to this policy. For any balances receivable from such small and medium sized enterprises, the
management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards them and makes provisions against those
balances considered doubtful of recovery. Cash is held only with banks with high quality credit worthiness.

(a) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Note

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

RUPEES RUPEES
Long term deposits 13,622,274 13,616,929
Trade debts 640,857 885 509,681,878
Deposits and other receivables 191.308.720 83,045427
Bank balances 97.049,529 29,853,735
942 838,408 636,197,969

(b) Impairment losses:

Export receivables as at year end are nor past due. The aging of local trade debts as at the reporting date is
as follows:

2018 2017
Gross value Impairme nt Gross value Impairment
- Rupeeg ———— -

Not past due 321,841,725 - 251,379,451 -

Past due 1-60 days 231,640,745 - 198,991,321 .

Past due 61 days to 1 year 19,714,585 - 22,457,012 -
More than 1 vear 33,678,219 4,238,453 36,651,705 5,707,446
606,875,274 4,238,453 509,479,489 5,707,446

Based on past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and recoveries, the
Company believes that trade debtors considered good do not require any impairment except as provided
above. None of the other financial assets are either past due or impaired.

o .
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(¢ ) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date segregated by geographic region is as follows:

| 2018 | | 2017 |
Balance Suléi Balance St
outstanding outstanding ;
Rupees

Domestic 602,636 821 3.522.486.674 503,772,043 3.,001,011,522
Turkey - 129,192,203 5,909,835 3RR.013.804
China 38,221,064 2,356, 727,687 - 1,597.952,129
640,857,885 6,008 406,564 509 681,878 4.986,977.455

(d) The credit quality of Company's bank balances as at the balance sheet date can be assessed with reference to
external credit ratings as follows: Nte

June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017

37.1.2 Liquidity risk

RUPEES RUPEES
Al+ 96,773,374 28,161,384
A-1+ 236,349 1,303,274
A-1 39,806 389,077
97,049,529 29,853,735

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because
of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its habilities carlier than expected or difficulty
in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of
financial liabilities, including interest payments:

Long term financing
Gratuity payable

Loan from associates
Loan from director
Trade and other pavables
Unchimed Dividend
Acerued mark-up

Short term bormowings
June 30, 2018

Long term financing
Giratuity payable

Loan from associates
Loan from director
Trade and other payables
Unchimed Dividend
Accrued mark-up

Short term bormowings
June 30, 2017

Citrrying viloe Contractual cashflows
Y Total | | Upto one year | | More than one year
Rupees
245,248 580 (264,465 597) (139.376,366) (105,089,031}
63,250,494 (63.250,494) - (63.250.494)
396,770,371 (396,770,371} (80,000,000 (316,770,371}
10,000,000 (10L000,000) { 10,000,000 -
037, 834,840 (657,834,840} (65T, 834 8400
1,478,723 (1,478,723} (1,478.723)
39,138,030 (39.138.,030) (39.138,030)
|.615,969 280 {1,615.969,280) (1,615,969 280) -
3,029,690.318 (3,048,907,335) (2,563,797.439) (485,109,8%6)
194,617,285 (210,684,479} (104,570,232) (106,114,247}
59,091,849 (59,091,849 - (39.091,849)
418,608,058 (418,608,058) (121,000,000) (297,608,058)
4. 800,000 (4.800,000) (4,800.000)
474 434 641 (474, 434.641) (474,434,641}
1,478,601 (1,478,601) (1,478,601)
24,157.491 (24,157.491) (24,157,491)
1,209, 286,699 (1,209.286,6599) (1,209, 286,699) -
2,386,564,624 (2,402,631,818) (1,939,727.664) (462,904,154)

Contractual cash flows include tentative interest payments to be made up to the maturity of relevant
facilities. The future interest related cash flows depend on the interest rates applicable at that time and the
extent of utilization of running finance facilities.

[42]

=]




Nadeem_

37.1.3 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in
market interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument,
change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the
market. Market risk comprises of currency risk. interest rate risk and other price risk.

(a) Currency risk
Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions denominated in
foreign currencies. The foreign currency risk ol the Company arising due to exports is minimal as the export
bills are immediately realized via sale to bank. Currently the Company's main risk exposure is on its foreign
currency borrowing.

As at the balance sheet date, if Pakistani Rupee depreciated / appreciated by 1% against US$, with all other
variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax would have higher / lower by Rs. 0.38 million
{2017: Rs. 4.04 million) as a result of exchange loss/gain on translation of foreign currency denominated
financial instruments.

(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short and long
term borrowings from banks and term deposits with banks. At the balance sheet date, the interest rate profile
of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instruments was as follows:

2018 | 2017 2018 | 2017
Effective interest rate (%) Canrying amount (Rs.)

Financial assets
Bank deposits - Pls accounts 3.75% - 4.5% 2.5%-3% 437,192 18,478,329
Financial liabilities
Long tem financing 8.153% - 8.93% 7.85% - 9.36% 245 248,580 194 617,285
Short tem financng;

-Kibor based B.14% - 8.43%  T.85% - B.R5% 1,615, 838,906 799,690,608

-Libor based 1.5% - 2% 1.5% - 2% - 345 966091

As at balance sheet date, the Company does not hold any fixed rate interest based financial assets or
liabilities carried at fair value.

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increase / decrease profit /
loss by 18.61 mullion (2017: 13.22 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.
This is mainly attributable to the company's exposure to interest rates on its variable rate borrowings.

37.2  Measurement of fair values

*Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Management engage independent external experts / valuers to carry out valuation of its non-financial assets
(i.e. Property, plant and equipment) and financial assets where prices are not quoted or readily available in
the market.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques
as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

5 .
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Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The Company does not hold financial assets under level-1 and level-2. The fair value of land, office
premises and building is categorised in level 3 fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfers between ditferent levels of fair values mentioned above,

37.3 Capital risk management
The management's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The management closely monitors the return
on capital along with the level of distributions to ordinary share holders.
The management seeks to maintain a balance between higher returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.
The Company is not required to maintain any regulatory capital,
38 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
2018 2017
Chief executive Directors  Total Chief executive Directors Executives Total
Rupees Rupees
Managerial remuneration and fee 3272727 2,363,636 5,636,363 3272727 2363636 13650000 19,286,363
Other allowances and reimbursable expenses 327,273 236,364 363,637 327273 136364 1,365,000 1,928,637
3,600,000 2,600,000 6,200,000 3,600,000 2,600,000 15,015,000 21,215,000
Number of persons | 2 3 ! 3 17 21
38.1 The Chief Executive and two directors are provided with cars maintained by the Company and Electricity,
CGias and Telephone consumption at their residence is also borne by the company,
38.2  The Chief Executive and directors have waived their meeting fees.
39 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related parties comprise of associated Companies, staff retirement funds, directors and key management
personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out lransactions with various related
parties, Detail of related parties (with whom the Company has transacted) along with relationship and
transactions with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these financial
statements, are as follows:

Relationship

Name of the related percentage Transactions during the
party s hare holding vear and yvear end balances
] ; : Mote
Nadeem Power Generation Associated company June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
{Private) Limited by virtue of common Transactions during the vear RUPEES RUPEES
directorship
Electricity purchased 200,833 330 225021 862
Loan received 2,300,000 HE 10,000
Loan repaid G BTT.6RT 34168226
Rental meome TRt 10000
Balance owistanding 31156880 17698 058
Madeem International Associted company
{Private) Lionied by wvirtue of commoen Transactions during the vear
directorship
Loan received 32 000,000 156550000
Loan repaid 46, 350,00 B3.000.000
Weight bridge expenses 1 50, 00K) 180,000
Balance owstanding 36,650 00 A4 000, (00
Zahid Mazhar Chief Executive Officer Transactions during the vear 5,200,000 -

Balance ewstanding

10,000,000

4,500,000

[l
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Note
June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017
RUPEES RUPEES
40 PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Total number of spindles installed 72,732 72,192
Average numbers of spindle worked 66,109 61,642
Number of shifts worked per day 3 3
Installed capacity after conversion into 20/s count (kgs.) 23,211,581 21,419,702
Actual production after conversion into 20/s count (kgs.) 22.190.476 20,453,220
Capacity utilisation 95.60% 05.49%

40.1  This includes 7 ring frames consisting of 3,732 spindles held in godown for repair and maintenance. Actual
production is less than the installed capacity due to planned maintenance shutdown and gap between market
demand and supply.

41 OPERATING SEGMENT
These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment as the company's
asset allocation decisions are based on a single, integrated business strategy, and the company's performance
is evaluated on an overall basis.

The information with respect to operating segment is stated below:

- Revenue from sales of yarn represents 97.59% (2017: 98.27%) of total revenue whereas remaining represent
revenue from sale of waste, raw material sale and processing income.

- All non current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2018 are located in Pakistan.

- 52% sales of the company relate to customer outside Pakistan (direct and indirect exports) (2017: 41%)

42 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees and average number of employees at year end and during the year
respectively are as follows:

Total employees of the Company at the year end 1.313 1,039
Average employees of the Company during the year 1,236 1,154
Employees working in the Company’s factory at the year end 1,262 O88
Average employees working in Company’s factory during the year 1,185 1,103

43 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

The Board of Directors of the Company has authorized the financial statements for issue in their meeting
held on September 27, 2018,
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44 GENERAL

44.1 Non Adjusting events after the reporting date
The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting dated September 27, 2018 has proposed cash
dividend at the rate of 32% (2017: 3.5% amounting to Rs. 5.46 million) per share which amounts to
PKR 61.478 million for the financial and tax year 2018,

44.2 Corresponding figures
Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified. wherever necessary, for the purpose of
comparison. Major reclassification are detailed hereunder:
Reclassification from component Reclassification to component Rupees
SALES - NET DISTRIBUTION COST
Ocean freight Ocean freight 16,987,818
Export development charges Export development charges 5,318,772
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLE ON FACE OF BALANCE SHEET
Unclaimed Dividend Unclaimed Dividend 1,478,601
OTHER OPERATING LOSS OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment Loss on sale of property, plant and equipme 2.044 892
Loss on exchange rate difference Loss on exchange rate difference 1.770,180

44.2  Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

P

A

(M

DIRECTOR
Karachi: Dated: September 27, 2018

DIRECTOR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

As required U/S 232(1) of the companies Act, 2017, these financial statements have been signed by two directors and CFO,

as the chief executive is out of country.
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NADEEM TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2018
NUMBERS OF . = TOTAL SHARES
SHAREHOLDERS SELSRE BOLDING HELD
15 Shareholding from 1 to 100 shares 307
12 Shareholding from 101 to 300 shares 5,684
3 Shareholding from 501 o 1000 shares 2,092
2 Sharehhoding from 100001 1o 105000  shares 209,338
1 Sharehhoding from 705001 o 710000  shares 707,849
1 Sharehhoding from 710001 to 715000  shares 712,934
| Sharchhoding from 715001 3] 720000  shares 715,704
1 Sharehhoding from 975001 1o OR0000  shares 977,086
1 Sharchhoding from 1100001 tw 1105000  shares 1,103,399
2 Sharchhoding from 1570001  to 1575000  shares 3,145,546
1 Sharehhoding from 3600001 to 3605000  shares 3,604,500
1 Sharehhoding from ROZ5001  w B030000  shares R.027.546
41 19,211,985
* There is not shareholding in the slab not mentioned.

{SR # | CATEGORIES | NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS | SHARES HELD |PERCENTAGE
Directors, [‘I1ilef Exe::‘utive Officer their 9 13,580,008 20.65%
Spouse and minor children

5 Associated :L'_'um]:lanius, undertaking and | 1,604,500 18.76%

related parties

3 NIT - )

4 Bank / Financial Institution - - -

5 Insurance Companies - - -

6  General Public / Individuals 3 2,026,577 10.55%
T Jomt Stock Companies - E -

41 19,211,985 [ 002
ISR # | Shareholder Category | Percentage |[No.of Shares |
1 CEQ, DIRECTORS AND THEIR SPOUSES AND MINOR CHILDRENM
DIRECTORS AND THEIR SPOUSES
MR. ZAHID MAZHAR 41.78 B.027.546
MRE. OMER BIN ZAHID B8 1,571,388
MR, HASSAN BIN ZAHID 819 1,574,158
MRS. NAILA ZAHID 5.09 977.086
MRS. ANAM OMER 373 715,704
MRS, SHAFIA HASSAN 3.71 712,934
ME. MEHMOOD SIDDIQUIT 0.00 706
MR, FAIZ-UL-HASSAN SIDDIQUI 0.00 693
MR. NADEEM AHMED 0.00 693
2 Associated companies undertakings and related parties 1876 3,604,500
3 NIT - -
4 Banks, development financial institutions, non banking finance institutions
and Insurance companies - -
5 Individual shareholders 10,55 2.026.577
6 Jomnt stock companies - -
7 Sharcholders holding 5% or more
ME. ZAHID MAZHAR 41.78 B.027.546
MR. OMER BIN ZAHID B.1R 1,571,388
MR. HASSAN BIN ZAHID ®.19 1.574.15%
MST. RAFIA SULTANA 5.74 1,103,399
Nadeem Power Generation (Pve.) Lid. 18,76 3.604.500
B Trading in the shares of Company during the vear by the Directors, Chief Executive officer
Chief Financial Cficer, Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children
Mrs. Anam Omer accquired / purchased shares 1.72 329,650
Mrs. Shafia Hassan accquired / purchased shares 1.72 329,650
[47] .
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